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Stipulated Judgment and Order—1

Plaintif?, the United States of America, acting upon notification and authorization to-the

Attorney General by the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or the “Commission”), pursuant to
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Section 16(a)(1) of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act™), 15 U.8.C. § 56(a)(1), ‘has
filed a complairt pursuant to Sections 5(a)(1), 5(m)(1)(A), 13(b), 16(a), and 19 of the FTC Act,
15 U.8.C. §§ 45(a)(1), 45(m)(1)(A), 53b, 56(a), and 57b, and under Section 7(a) of the
Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 (“CAN-
SPAM" or the “CAN-SPAM Act”), 15 U.S..C.§ 7706(&), to secure civil penalties, a permanent
injunpﬁon, end other equitable relief for Defendant’s violations of Sections 5(a) and (d) of CAN-
SPAM, 15 U.S.C. §§ 7704(a) and (d), aqd the FTC’s Adult Ldbeling Rule (the “Adult Labeling
Rule” or the “Rule”), 16 C.F.R. Part 316.4. The parties to this action agree to settlement of this
action without adjudication of any issue of fact or law and without Defendant admitting liability
for any of the violations alleged in the complaint. |
. THEREFORE, on the joint motion of the parties, it is hereby ORDERED,
A‘DJUISGED AND DECREED as follows:
~ FINDINGS

1. "This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter pursuant to 15 U.5.C. §§
45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), 56(a), 57b, and 7706(a), and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 1345, and 1355.
2. Plaintiff and Deferidant consent to jurisdiction and venue in this District.
3. The activities of Defendant is in or affecting commerce, as defined in Section 4 of
the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44.
4. The complaint states a claim upon which relief may be granted against Defendant
under Sections 5(a) and (d) of the CAN-SPAM Act, 15U.8.C. §§ 7704(a) and 7704(d), and the
FTC’s Adult Labeling Rule, 16 C.F.R. Part 316.4. |
5. Defendanf has entered into this Stipulated Judgment and Order for Permanent
Injunction (“Order”) freely and without coercion.

6. Defendant hereby waives all rights to appeal or otherwise challenge or contest the
validity of this Order. -

7. Defendant has agreed that this Order does not entitle Defendant to seek or to

obtain attorneys’ fees as a prevéiling party under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C.
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§ 2412, as amended,v and Defendant further waives any rights to attorneys’ fees that may arise
under said provision of law.
. 8. Jeffrey Macher, Ingrid Macher, and Timothy Knoll stipulafe to the Court’s

findings and entry of this Order.

9. Settlement of this action constitutes consideration for Jeffrey Macher, Ingrid
Macher, and Timothy Knoll to stipulate to the Court's findings and entry of this Order.

10.  Eniry of this Order is in the public interest.

DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of this Order, the following definitions shall apply:

1. “Affiliate Program” means any agreement whereby any person agrees to provide
Defendant with, or refers to Defendant, potential or actual customers.
_‘ 2. “Commercial electronic mail (“email”’) message” means any electronic mail
message which contains a commercial advertisement or promotion of a corimercial product or
service (inciuding content on an Internet web sité operated for a commercial purpose).
3. “Defendant” means TJ Web Productions, LLC.
4, “Document” is synonjmous in meaning and equal in scope to the usage of the
term in Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes writings, drawmgs, graphs, charts,
photogréphs, audio and video recordings, computer records, and other data compilations from
which information can be obtained and translated, if necessary, into reasonably usable form
through detectinn devices. A draft or non-identical copy is a separate document within the
meaning of the term.

5. “Electronic mail (“email”) address” means a destination, commonly expressed as

{la string of characters, consisting of a unique user name or mailbox (commonly referred to as the

“local part”) and a reference to an Internet domain (commonly referred to as the “domain part™),
whether or not displayed, to which an electronic mail message can be sent or delivered.

6. “Electronic mail (“email”) message” means a message sent to a unique electronic

mail address.
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7. “Initiate,” when used with respect to a commercial email message, means to

—

originate or transmit such message or to procure the origination or transmission of such message.
For purposes of this Order, more than one person may be considered to have initiated a message.
3. “Person” means a natural person or a corporation, partnership, proprietorship,
limited liability company, or other organization or legal entity, including an association,
cooperative, or agency, or other group or combination acting as an entity.
9. “Procure,” when used wifh respect to the initiation of a commercial email

message, means intentionally to pay or provide other consideration to, or induce, another person

R N - RV S SV B

to initiate such a message on one’s behalf. Provided, howeverj, that for the purposes of this

]

Order, Defendant has not procured the initiation of commercial email messages that violate the

oy
—

CAN-SPAM Act or its implementing regulations: (1) if it has contractually prohibited affiliates

N

from sending commercial email or, in the case of persons who are not affiliates, has not

—
)

requestzd any such persons to send commercial email; and (2) if it has complied with the

requirements set forth in Paragraph III of this Order.

— —
W gu

10.  “Recipient,” when used with respect to a commercial electronic mail message,

o

means an authorized user of the electronic mail address to which the message was sent or

—
~

delivered. If a recipient of a commercial electronic mail message has one or more electronic mail
18 |laddresses in addition to the address to which_ the message was sent or delivered, the recipient

19 |ishall be treated as a separate recipient with respect to each such address. If an electronic mail

20 |address is reassigned to a new uset, the new user shall not be treated as a recipient. of any

21 |lcommercial electronic mail message sent or delivered to that address before it was reassigned.
22 1. “Sender” means a person who initiates a.commercial electronic mail message and
23 |lwhose product, service, or Internet web site is advertised or promoted by the message.

24 12, “Sexually oriented material” means any material that depic:i:s sexually explicit

25 |iconduct (as that term is defined in Section 2256 of Title 18, United States Code), unless the

26 |depiction constitutes a small and insignificant part of the whole, the remainder of which is not
27 |primarily devoed to sexual matters.

28
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13. *Valid physical postal address™ means a sender’s current street address, a Post
Office box a ser.der has registered with the United States Postal Service, or a private mailbox a
llsender has régistcred with a commercial mail receiving agency that is established pursuant to
United States Postal Service regulations. ‘
ORDER

I. PROHIBITION AGAINST VIOLATING THE CAN-SPAM ACT
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Defendant and its successors, assigns, officers,
agents, servants, employees, and attorneys, and those persons in active concert or par'tiéipation
with any of thera who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, are
hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from violating the CAN-SPAM Act, 15 US.C.
§§ 7701 et seq., and as amended, including but not limited to initiating the transmission of a
commercial email message:

A, that does not contain a functioning return email address or other Interﬁet—based
mechanism, clearly and conspicuously displayed, that (i) a recipient may use to
submit, in a manner specified in the message, a reply email message or other form
of Internet-based communication requesting not to receive future commercial
email messages from that sender at the email address where the message was
received; and (ii) remains capable of receiving such messages or communications
for no less vthan 30 days after the transmission of the original message; or,

B. that does not contain a clear and conspicuous di‘splay of an accurate, valid,
physical postal address of the sender of the message.

Defendznt and its successors, assigns, officers, agents, servants, ernployees, and

attorneys, and those persons in active concert or participation with it who receive actual notice of

this Ordler by personal service or otherwise, are further permanently restrained and enjoined from

procuring the transmission of a commercial email message that does not contain a clear and
conspicuous notice of a recipient’s opportunity to decline to receive future commercial email

messagas from Defendant.
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[1. PROHIBITION AGAINST VIOLATING THE ADULT LABELING RULE

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendanf and its successors, assigns, officers,
égents, servants, employees, and attorneys, and those pérsons in active concert or participation‘
with any of thera who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or 6therwise, are

hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from violating the Adult Labéling Rule, 16 C.F.R.

§ 316.4. and as amended, i'ncluding but not limited to initiating the transmission of a commercial

email message that includes sexually oriented material to anyone who has not given “prior

affirmative consent” per 16 C.F.R. § 31 6.4(b): ' |
A. that does not contain the phrase “SEXUALLY-EXPLICIT: ” as the first nineteen
(19) Characters at the beginning of the subject line of the message;
B. that does not include, within the initially viewable content of the message, a
second instance of the phrase “SEXUALLY-EXPLICIT:”,
1liat-includes sexually oriented materials within the sUBject line of the message; or
that includes sexually oriented materials within the content of the message that is
.initially viewable by the recipient, when the message is opened by the recipient
and absent any further action by the recipient;
III. MONITORING BY DEFENDANT FOR COMPLIANCE
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that TJ Web Productions, LLC, and its 5UCCESSOrs,
assigns, officers, agents, servants, and employees, and those persons in active concert or
participation w:th any of them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or
otherwise, are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from failing to immediately take the
following steps to ensure compliance with Paragraphs I and II of this Order: '

A. Prior to a person’s participation in Defendant’s affiliate program, Defendant shall
reduire éach prospective participant to provide to Defendant its first and last
name, physical address, country, telephone number, email address, date of birth, |
and bank account information (where used to make payments to that person). In
the event that the prospective participant is not a natural person, but is a

corporation, partnership, proprietorship, limited liability company, or other
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| organization or legal entity, including an association, cooperative, agency, or other
group or combination acting as an entity, Defendant shall also require from that
prospective participant the first and last name, physical address, country,
tzlephone number, email address, and date of birth for the natural person(s) who
cwns, manages, or controls that prospective participant;

B. Prior to a person’s acceptance into Defendant’s affiliate program, Defendant shall
(1) provide each prospective participant in Defendant’s affiliate program a copy or
summary (to be agreed upon by counsel for Defendant and the Commission) of this
Order; (2) obtain from each prospective participant an express agreement to
comply with this Order and the CAN-SPAM Act; and (3) obtain from each
prospective participant a signed and dated statement (which signature may be
obtained electronically, provided that the signature would comply with the
signature requirements of the Electronic Signatures in' Global and National
Commerce Act, (“E-Sign Act™), 15U.8.C. §. 7001 et seq.), acknowledging receipt
of this Order;

C. Defendant shall establish, implement, and maintain an email address or other
Internet-based mechanism that is clearly and conspicuously disclosed on the first
page consumers visit on entering Defendant’s web site, (i) that invites visitors tb
report commercial email messages promoting Defendant’s web site, and that
permits the Defendant to Aconnect affirmative responses, if any, to such invitation
with the referring affiliate, and (ii) for receiving and responding to consumer
complaints about commercial email messages;

D. Defendant shall promptly and fully investigaté, any information received by
Diefendant regarding a commercial email message that promotes Defendant’s web
site(s), including but not limited to responses received pursuant to Paragraph III. C,
and complaints received from consumers, Internet Service Providers, the
Commission or other law enforcement agencies, to determine whether such

commercial email message violates a contractual provision of Defendant’s affiliate
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program, the CAN-SPAM Act, the Adult Labeling Rule, or any provision of this
O:der; ‘

E. Defendant shall require each new subscriber to Defendant’s web sites to identify
ths manner in which they were directed to Defendant’s web sites (i.e., email
message, banner ad, pop;up window, etc.). If a new subscriber indicates that he or
ste was referred to Defendant’s web sites through ‘a commercial email message,
Defendant shall promptly and fully investigate to determine whether a commercial
emnail message was sent in violation of a contractual provision of the Defendant’s
affiliate program, the CAN-SPAM Act, the Adult Labeling Rule, or any provision
of this Order; '

F.  Defendant shall immediately terminate from all of the Defendant’s affiliate
programs and cease payments to any person who Defendant reasonably concludes
has sent a commercial email message on Defendant’s_ behalf that violates a
c()mractﬁal provision of Defendant’s affiliate program prohibiting the sending of
commercial email, the CAN-SPAM Act, the Adult Labeling Rule, or any provision
of this Order. ‘

G. Cn the web page where a person registers to become a member of Defendant’s
afiliate program, Defendant shall clearly and conspicuously disclose that a
violation of the affiliate program’s commercial email policy will result in
immediate termination of a person’s affiliate a‘ccount and the forfeiture of all
monies earned or owed to that person. Such message shall also include a hyperlink
to Defendant’s commercial email policy if that policy is not inéluded on that web
page;

H. Defendant shall include in its affiliate contract a requirement that each person who
participates in Defendant’s affiliate program must create, maintain, and retain the
records and documents necessary to demonstrate each person’s full compliance '

with each provision of this Order;

Stipulated Judgment and Order — 8 Page -8-
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.'Provided. however, that this Paragraph does not authorize or require Defendant to take
any action that violates any federal, state, or local law.,
IV. CIVIL PENALTY
1T IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant, and its successors and assigns,
+ shall pav to Plaintiff a civil penalty, pursuant to Section 5(m)(1)(A) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C, Section 45(m)(1)(A), in the amount of $465,000 as follows:
A. Defendant TJ Web shall make a payment of $50,000 (“initial payment™)
within thirty (30) days of the date of entry of this Order by electronic fund
transfer in accordance with the instructions provided by the Office of
Consumer Litigation, Civil Division, U.S, Department of Justicé,
Washington, D.C. 20530, for appropriate disposition.
- B. After the initial payment, Defendant TJ Web shall pay the remaining
balance of $415,000 (“balance™), in twelve quarterly payments (“quarterly
payments™) by certified check sent by Overnight Delivery in accordance
with the instructions provided by the Office of Consumer Litigation, Civil
Division, U.S. Department of Justice, Washington, D.C. 20530, for
appropriate disposition. The first eleven quarterly payments shall be for
$34,583.33 each and the final quarterly payment shall be for $34,583.37.
z. The quarterly payments shall be paid on the first day of the third month
following the date of entry of this Order, and every three months |
thereafter.
D. Jeffrey Macher agrees to be a Guarantor and personally guarantee payment
of $207,500. Jeffrey Macher has executed a Promissory Note and Deed of
Trust which are attached to this Order and incorporated as part of the
Order. In the event that Defendant TJ Web fails to timely pay any
quarterly payment required by this Order, Jeffrey Macher shall
immediately pay to Plaintiff or its representative the total amount of the

installment payments that Jeffrey Macher would have paid under the
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